

**Proposed Amendments to the
Downtown Transit Oriented Development Ordinance, Exhibit A**
Bold and underlined indicates added text; ~~strikethrough~~ indicates deletions

Exhibit A

Special Review Overlay Criteria

Implementation of the TOD Strategy also includes associated rezoning of certain properties within the ½ mile radius to S-Overlay to address the eight Special Policy Areas identified in the Strategy. The rezoning will result in the S-Overlay designation being added as follows: DA-1 (S), DA-4 (S), DA-5 (S), DA-6 (S), PS (S) and OS (S).

The following is language that will be provided in ordinance form for the City Council meeting that would provide policy guidance for the eight (8) Special Policy Zones:

The “S” Overlay Zone is hereby applied to certain areas as described herein to implement provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where flexibility is needed to allow for varying development scenarios on those Parcels. The guidelines set forth herein are in addition to those requirements set forth in the underlying DA District. Where a conflict arises between the provisions of the “S” Overlay and the underlying DA District, the provisions of the “S” Overlay shall prevail.

~~Special SP-1 – Downtown South Gateway Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the 1.7 acre site fronting on the east side of East 14th Street between Juana and Dolores Avenues. Development requirements for this site shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 1 District with the exception that mixed use development is required with residential use on the upper floors and retail use on the ground floors fronting East 14th Street. A minimum front setback of seven feet is required along East 14th Street to create a minimum 15-foot wide pedestrian zone; and an additional 10-foot setback is required at the proposed BRT station to allow for transit related facilities and patron waiting areas.~~

SP-2 - Washington Plaza Shopping Center and San Leandro Plaza Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the 7.5 acre site fronting on Davis Street, East 14th Street, Hays Street, Washington Avenue, and West Juana Avenue. Development requirements for this site shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 1 District with the exception that ground floor retail is required on all parcels and residential use is desired on the upper floors. Furthermore, any expansion of square footage North of Estudillo Avenue ~~must~~ **should** include a mixed-use component with either office or residential on upper floors. Office uses are only allowed when in conjunction with retail or residential uses. West Joaquin Avenue between Hays Street and

Washington Avenue shall be re-established as a pedestrian paseo as a part of any new development. The northern area of the site bounded by Davis Street, East 14th Street, Hays Street and the West Estudillo Avenue paseo is the preferred location for a new 1.0 – 1.5-acre City Square.

SP-3 - Town Hall Square and Vicinity Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios of the 3.7-acre area excluding the East 14th Street right-of-way. Development requirements for this site shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 1 District with the exception that ~~mixed-use development is required with residential use on the upper floors;~~ ground floor retail is encouraged along Davis Street and Callan Avenue; **and the** minimum building height is 24 feet or two stories; ~~the building setbacks along the west side of East 14th Street shall be approximately 12 feet to align with the Civic Center and create a minimum 25-foot wide sidewalk/pedestrian amenity zone.~~ **Reconfiguration and/or narrowing of Dan Niemi Way (Hays Street) will be closed is encouraged** between East 14th Street and Davis Street to create a pedestrian open space connector **an improved pedestrian experience, outdoor plazas, and increased interaction with the creek. A building setback shall be provided to encourage development of a creek trail along the San Leandro Creek.** The area adjacent to San Leandro Creek with direct visibility from Davis Street and East 14th Street provides an alternative location for the proposed 1.0 – 1.5 acre City Square.

SP-4 - Toler Parking Lot Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the City-owned 0.4 acre surface parking lot between Root Park and the Civic Center to create a linkage between City center and Downtown. If developed, this parcel shall be used for mixed-use residential facing East 14th Street at a minimum density of 45 units per acre for residential uses and 35 units per acre where ground floor retail is proposed. Ground floor retail is encouraged along East 14th Street. Office uses are allowed as a component of a mixed use development at a maximum FAR of 1.0. In this area, the maximum building height is 50 feet. ~~The building setbacks along East 14th Street shall be 15 feet from the existing property line to align with the Civic Center and create a minimum 25-foot wide sidewalk/pedestrian amenity zone.~~

SP-5 - North Alvarado Sites Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the 10.4 acre site. Development for this site shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 4 District requirements with the exception that the re-use of the site should capitalize on the close-in underutilized land and provide improvements that will be beneficial to the general Downtown area and meet stated community needs. Residential development as well as the relocation of Thrasher Park or similar recreational open space are permitted uses. If developed, the maximum building height is 75 feet, with the building height and scale reduced adjacent to the Cherrywood residential area. A building setback ~~of 150 feet~~ from San Leandro Creek shall be provided **to encourage development of a creek trail and open space along the San Leandro Creek** ~~for a linear park connection.~~ New development shall provide sound protection from the adjacent

BART and Union Pacific Rail Road rail lines.

SP-6 - Thrasher Park Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the 4.5 acre area currently used for a 4.0 acre park and 0.5 acre parking lot. Development with office uses will only be allowed if and when an equivalent or larger replacement park is provided. Office uses shall be the dominant land use with limited support retail only. The maximum building height shall be 50 feet, with the scale and height reduced adjacent to the Orchard Street residential neighborhood.

SP-7 - St. Leander's School Special Policies. To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios at the 1.7-acre site. The site shall remain in open space, recreational, and educational uses unless the property owner desires to develop the property. To serve as both a school resource and a neighborhood amenity, St. Leander's School and the City could consider a public/private agreement to redesign the area and allow public use during non-school hours. In the event the property owner desires to develop the property, development shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 4 District with the exception that residential parking shall not exceed a maximum of 1.0 spaces per unit and no parking will be required for retail uses.

~~SP-8 - BART/Westlake Properties Special Policies.~~ To implement specific provisions of the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy where special flexibility is needed to allow for policies that may result in varying development scenarios within the Downtown Area 5 District at the BART/Westlake Properties.

~~Site A is a 1.9-acre parcel. Development of Site A shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 4 District with the exception that residential parking shall not exceed a maximum of 1.0 spaces per unit and no parking will be required for retail uses. Retail uses shall be limited to 5,000 square feet or less.~~

~~Site B comprises 6.8 acres, and shall be developed consistent with the requirements of the Downtown Area 5 District, with the exception that sound protection shall be provided from the BART and UPRR uses and in the event City and/or BART are unable to acquire the Western Pacific right-of-way, pedestrian and bicycle crossings of the tracks shall be incorporated into any new development plans.~~

~~Site C (West Parrott Sites) comprises 3.1 acres. Limited retail uses are allowed if determined to be feasible. The primary intended use is parking. Residential use is allowed if alternative means to providing BART replacement parking is provided. Restrictions related to residential development under Site B shall apply to Site C as well.~~

~~Site D (North BART Parking Lot) comprises 1.8 acres. If redeveloped to capitalize on its commercial frontage, development shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 6 District requirements, with the exception that only office and support retail uses are allowed. Support retail use is limited to a maximum of 5,000 square feet. A maximum of 2.0 parking spaces shall~~

be provided for each 1,000 gross square feet of office space and no parking is required for retail uses. There is no maximum building height.

~~Site E (South BART Parking Lot) comprises 2.1 acres. If redeveloped to capitalize on its commercial frontage, development shall be consistent with the Downtown Area 6 District requirements, with the exception that only office, residential, and support retail uses are allowed. Support retail use is limited to a maximum of 2,500 square feet. A maximum of 2.0 parking spaces shall be provided for each 1,000 gross square feet of office space and no parking is required for retail uses. Residential parking shall be provided at a maximum of 1.0 space per unit. There is no maximum building height. New development shall also provide for an extension of the “East Bay Greenway” (as defined in the Downtown San Leandro Transit-Oriented Development Strategy) to the BART station.~~

SP-1 – Downtown South Gateway Special Policies

~~In all new development, mixed-use development is required with residential use on upper floors and retail use on ground floors fronting East 14th Street. SP-1 also requires that new development provide adequate space to accommodate pedestrian access to a proposed BRT transit stop.~~

SP-2 - Washington Plaza Shopping Center and San Leandro Plaza Special Policies

The following exceptions to the requirements of the underlying Downtown Area 1 District apply to all development on the approximately 7.5-acre area fronting on Davis Street to the north; the west side of East 14th Street between Callan Avenue and Estudillo Avenue, and the west side of Washington between Estudillo Avenue and Juana Avenue, and to the east of Hays Street between Davis Street on the north and Juana Avenue on the south:

1. In all new development, retail uses are required on the ground floor. Residential uses are desired on the upper floors. Any expansion of square footage North of Estudillo Avenue ~~must~~ **shall** include a mixed-use component with either office or residential on upper floors.
2. Office uses are only permitted in mixed-use developments.
3. New development proposals shall include provisions for:
 - a. Increasing the intensity of use on-site by providing required parking in structures.
 - b. Re-establishing West Joaquin Avenue between Hays Street and Washington Avenue as a pedestrian paseo.
 - c. Incorporating a 1.0 – 1.5-acre public open space in the northern portion of the block bounded by Davis Street, East 14th Street, Hays Street, and the West Estudillo Avenue paseo.

SP-3 - Town Hall Square and Vicinity Special Policies.

The following exceptions to the requirements of the underlying Downtown Area 1 District apply to all new development on the approximately 3.7-acre area fronting on the west side of East 14th Street between San Leandro Creek on the north, Hays Street on the west; and Davis Street on the south

1. Ground floor retail uses are encouraged along the Davis Street and Callan Avenue frontages.
2. ~~Mixed use development is required, with residential uses on the upper floors and ground floor retail encouraged along Davis Street and Callan Avenue frontages in all new development.~~
3. New Development shall **consider reconfiguration and/or narrowing of Dan Niemi Way (Hays Street) between East 14th Street and Davis Street to create an improved pedestrian experience, outdoor plazas, and increased interaction with the creek.** ~~include provisions for the closure of Hays Street between East 14th Street and Davis Streets to be used as a pedestrian open space connector~~ **A building setback shall be provided to encourage development of a creek trail along the San Leandro Creek.**
4. Consideration shall be given to providing 1.0 – 1.5-acre public open space adjacent to San Leandro Creek with direct visibility from Davis Street and East 14th Street.

SP-4 - Toler Parking Lot Special Policies

The following shall be incorporated in any new public or private development other than public uses proposed on the 0.4-acre City-owned parking lot fronting on East 14th Street:

1. The site shall include design elements creating a linkage between Civic Center and Downtown.
2. Mixed-use residential shall face East 14th Street. Ground floor retail is encouraged along East 14th Street.
3. Residential density shall be a minimum of 35 units per acre with ground floor retail and 45 units per acre if stand-alone residential is proposed.
4. Office uses are allowed only if a component of mixed-use residential development. Office uses shall be limited to a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0.
5. Replacement parking shall be provided in close proximity prior to the occupancy of any new development on the site.

SP-5 - North Alvarado Sites Special Policies

The following exceptions to the requirements of the underlying Downtown Area 4 District apply to all development on the approximately 10.4-acre area fronting on San Leandro Creek, Alvarado Street, and the UPRR and BART lines:

1. Building setbacks of 150 feet shall be provided from San Leandro Creek **to encourage development of a creek trail and open space along the San Leandro Creek.**

2. Maximum building height in this area is 75 feet. Building height, massing, and scale shall be reduced adjacent to the Cherrywood residential neighborhood.
3. Sound protection from BART and UPRR shall be provided.

SP-6 - Thrasher Park Special Policies

The following shall be incorporated in any new public or private development other than public uses proposed on the 4.5-acre City-owned Thrasher Park and 50-space parking lot:

1. Redevelopment or private use of the site shall not occur until an equivalent or larger site is located and replacement open space and recreational facilities are complete.
2. If developed, uses shall be limited office and support retail only to capitalize on the commercial frontage.
3. Maximum building height on the Thrasher Park site shall be 50 feet. Building scale and height shall be reduced adjacent to the existing Orchard Street residential neighborhood.

SP-7 - St. Leanders School Special Policies

This privately-owned site is to remain in open space, recreational, and educational use, with the following permitted ancillary uses:

1. A public/private agreement may be entered into to allow shared use, including shared parking or recreation, during specified hours.
2. Any such shared use agreement shall include provisions for cost sharing to provide for capital improvements, maintenance, management, and security.
3. In the event a shared use agreement cannot be reached and development proposals are submitted by the property owner, all new development shall meet the requirements of the Downtown Area 4 District with the following exceptions:
 - a. Residential parking shall be provided at a maximum of 1.0 spaces per unit.
 - b. No parking is required for retail uses in mixed use developments.

~~SP-8 - BART/Westlake Properties Special Policies.~~

~~The provisions of these Special Policies apply to the specific properties clustered around the BART station as described herein to take advantage of immediate transit proximity, maximize the positive impact on the Downtown revitalization, and increase transit ridership.~~

~~Site A: The 2.1 acre BART East Parking Lot. Development requirements for this parcel shall~~

comply with the provisions of the Downtown Area 4 District with the following exceptions:

- ~~1. Residential parking shall be provided at a maximum of 1.0 spaces per unit.~~
- ~~2. No parking is required for retail uses in mixed use developments.~~

Site B: The 6.8-acre area known as the Westlake Parcels. Development requirements for this area shall comply with the provisions of the Downtown Area 5 District with the following exceptions:

- ~~1. Sound protection from BART and UPRR shall be provided.~~
- ~~2. In the event the City and BART are unable to acquire the Western Pacific right-of-way, pedestrian and bicycle crossings of the tracks shall be installed in conjunction with any new development.~~

Site C: The 3.1-acre site known as the West Parrott Sites.

- ~~1. This area shall be utilized as a major parking reservoir to capitalize on the location adjacent to BART and AC Transit facilities.~~
- ~~2. This site may be used to relocate existing BART parking on the East side of San Leandro Boulevard.~~
- ~~3. Parking in excess of BART replacement requirements is allowed to support new commercial development on surrounding properties or to create a shared parking strategy that serves BART and other users.~~
- ~~4. Visitor parking for new mixed-use residential developments on surrounding properties may be provided at this site.~~
- ~~5. Limited retail is allowed on this site if determined to be feasible.~~
- ~~6. Residential use is allowed if alternative means to providing BART replacement parking is provided.~~

Site D: The 1.8-acre North BART Parking Lot. New development on this site shall conform to the requirements of the Downtown Area 6 District with the following exceptions:

- ~~1. All new development is limited to office and retail uses only.~~
- ~~2. Retail space is limited to 5,000 square feet of floor area.~~
- ~~3. Office parking shall be limited to a maximum of 2.0 spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor area.~~
- ~~4. No parking is required for permitted retail uses.~~

~~5. New development shall coordinate in design with the Open Space Framework set forth in the Downtown San Leandro Transit Oriented Development Strategy in order to provide for the extension of the “East Bay Greenway” to the BART station.~~

~~Site E: The 2.1 acre South BART Parking Lot. New development on this site shall conform to the requirements of the Downtown Area 6 District with the following exceptions:~~

- ~~1. All new development is limited to office, residential, and support retail uses only.~~
- ~~2. Retail space is limited to 2,500 square feet of floor area.~~
- ~~3. Office parking shall be limited to a maximum of 2.0 spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor area.~~
- ~~4. No parking is required for permitted retail uses.~~
- ~~5. New development shall coordinate in design with the Open Space Framework set forth in the Downtown San Leandro Transit Oriented Development Strategy in order to provide for the extension of the “East Bay Greenway” to the BART station.~~